Public Document Pack

Cheshire E;s_ﬂ

CouncilZ

Scrutiny Committee

Agenda

Date:
Time:

Venue:

Thursday, 13th March, 2025
10.30 am
The Capesthorne Room - Town Hall, Macclesfield SK10 1EA

The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press. Part 2
items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons indicated on the
agenda and in the report.

It should be noted that Part 1 items of Cheshire East Council decision-making meetings are audio
recorded and the recordings are uploaded to the Council’'s website.

PART 1 - MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT

1. Apologies for Absence

2. Declarations of Interest
To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any disclosable pecuniary
interests, other registerable interests, and non-registerable interests in any item on the
agenda.

3. Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 3 - 8)
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the previous meeting held on 12
December 2024.

4, Public Speaking/Open Session
There is no facility to allow questions by members of the public at meetings of the Scrutiny
Committee. However, a period of 10 minutes will be provided at the beginning of such
meetings to allow members of the public to make a statement on any matter that falls
within the remit of the committee, subject to individual speakers being restricted to 3
minutes.

5. Update on Flood Risk Management (Pages 9 - 18)
To receive presentations from partner agencies on flood risk management.
Presentation from Cheshire Fire Authority enclosed.

Contact: Jennifer Ashley

Tel: 01270 685705

E-Mail: jennifer.ashley@cheshireeast.gov.uk


mailto:jennifer.ashley@cheshireeast.gov.uk

Presentations from Lead Local Flood Authority, Environment Agency and United Utilities
to follow.

6. Work Programme (Pages 19 - 20)

To consider the Work Programme and determine any required amendments.

Membership: Councillors S Adams, D Brown, C Browne, N Cook, B Drake, H Seddon, M Sewart,
M Simon, J Smith, J Snowball, S Corcoran, R Vernon (Vice Chair), L Wardlaw (Chair)



Public DoR¥fment Pack Agenda ltem 3

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the Scrutiny Committee
held on Thursday, 12th December, 2024 in the Council Chamber, Municipal
Buildings, Earle Street, Crewe CW1 2BJ

PRESENT

Councillor L Wardlaw (Chair)

Councillors S Adams, N Cook, H Seddon, M Sewart, J Snowball, S Corcoran
and L Anderson

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE

Brian Reed — Head of Democratic Services
Jennifer Ashley — Democratic Services Officer

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE

Matthew Cunningham - Associate Director of Corporate Affairs & Governance,
Cheshire & Merseyside NHS

Nicola Biggar - Head of Midwifery, East Cheshire NHS Trust

Chris Knights — Programme Director, Mid Cheshire Hospitals NHS Foundation
Trust

lan Moses- Area Director, Northwest Ambulance Service

Dave Kitchen, Cheshire & Merseyside Head of Operations

Graham Pacey, Cheshire & Merseyside South Sector Manager

Maud Larkin, Cheshire & Merseyside Partnerships & Integration Manager

24 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Craig Browne,
David Brown, Brian Drake, Margaret Simon, John Smith and Rob Veron.
25 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
In the interest of openness, Councillor Wardlaw declared she occasionally
worked for the Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS Foundation Trust as
a nurse in the Congleton area.
26 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 16 September 2024 be approved
as a correct record.



27

28

Page 4

PUBLIC SPEAKING/OPEN SESSION

Mr Gavin Palin attended the meeting and provided a statement relating to
his role as Community First Responder and Emergency Medical
Technician (1) working for Northwest Ambulance Service (NWAS).

Mr Palin provided details of his experience with NWAS and the training
and qualifications he had undertaken. Information was also provided to the
committee regarding Mr Palin having ‘blue light permissions’ removed from
him.

PROPOSED CHANGES TO NHS FUNDED GLUTEN FREE
PRESCRIBING

The committee received a report from the NHS Cheshire and Merseyside
Integrated Care Board (ICB) that informed the Committee that at the ICB
meeting on 28 November 2024, the ICB approved the recommendation
that the ICB commences a period of public consultation regarding the
proposal to cease NHS funded gluten free prescribing (bread and bread
mixes) across Cheshire and Merseyside.

The ICB had a duty to engage with Local Authority Health and Overview
Scrutiny Committees (HOSC) to seek confirmation as to whether the
HOSC believed the proposals constituted a substantial change to NHS
services, known as a Substantial Development of Variation of Services
(SDV).

The committee were informed that currently across Cheshire and
Merseyside there are differences in the prescribing availability of gluten
free products for patients due to previous arrangements of the individual
predecessor Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) organisations. Work
has been undertaken to rectify this position and recommend a harmonised
approach to gluten free prescribing.

Following discussions, Councillor Corcoran proposed that the proposals
did not constitute a Substantial Development of Variation of Service.
Councillor Sewart seconded the motion. The committee voted 3 for the
proposal, 4 against. Therefore the motion was lost.

Councillor Adams proposed that the proposals did constitute a Substantial
Development of Variation of Service. Councillor Cook seconded the
motion. The committee voted 4 for the proposal, 3 against.

RESOLVED:

That the Committee AGREED that the proposals represented a substantial
development or variation to services.



29

30

Page 5

That the Committee NOTED that subject to the decision of the Cheshire
East Council’'s Scrutiny Committee and that of the other seven Local
Authority HOSC’s that NHS Cheshire and Merseyside will inform and / or
consult with the relevant health scrutiny arrangements on the consultation
and its outcome.

That the Committee AGREED to delegate authority to the Head of
Democratic Services, in consultation with the Chair, to make appointments
to the Joint Health Scrutiny Committee if the matter arises.

MACCLESFIELD DISTRICT GENERAL HOSPITAL INTRAPARTUM
MATERNITY SERVICES: POST IMPLEMENTATION REVIEW

The Committee received a presentation from the Head of Midwifery, East
Cheshire NHS Trust that provided details of a review of services since the
implementation of Intrapartum Maternity Services at Macclesfield District
General Hospital from June 2023. The presentation captured the
significant programme of work undertaken that led up to the return of
services and set out the key lessons learned to inform future service
changes.

The Committee were informed of the significant programme of works that
had been undertaken that led to the return of services and the key lessons
learned that would inform future service changes.

Board members, staff, partners, key stakeholders and patient
representatives were involved in the Post Implementation Review which
had taken place three months after the return of services. It was
highlighted to Members that the return of intrapartum maternity services
after a significant suspension was great news for current and future
expectant women. Feedback regarding the implementation process had
been broadly positive and has helped to shape future projects.

The Committee were also advised that following an inspection from the
CQC in December 2023, one area identified as requiring improvement was
‘Safe’ which related to adequate staff being available for specialist areas. It
was noted that the data provided to the CQC and the way it had been
interpretated resulted in this rating, however, it was confirmed that there
were minimal vacancies across the service with Maternity Anaesthetic
provision stable and a priority. In addition there is a small team that share
lead roles working to National Standards.

RESOLVED:
That the presentation and report be noted.
LEIGHTON HOSPITAL EXPANSION PROGRAMME

The committee received a presentation from Chris Knights, Programme
Director, New Hospital Programme, that provided details of the proposed



31

Page 6

plans to rebuild Leighton Hospital. With the current site having a number of
infrastructure issues, the site had been identified as requiring replacement
and investment to ensure health provisions can continue.

Details of the preferred way forward and plans of the hospital were shared
with the committee, and it was noted the plan would follow a national
design known as ‘Hospital 2.0’ which is a standardised repeatable design
which is consistent across all new hospital construction. The new design
would bring a number of efficiencies and improvements for patient care.

Members were informed of the ambitious timetable for completion of the
project, with outline planning applications to be submitted in April 2025,
with a view to commence construction in winter 2026 and completion in
2030.

Members had a full discussion regarding the plans and were pleased to
hear of the digital transformation that is also to be included within the
project. Some concerns were raised regarding all wards containing single
rooms for patients, however, it was noted that the intention was to assist
with infection prevention and control, and patient wellbeing would still be a
priority to help reduce and issues with isolation.

RESOLVED:

That the committee noted the contents of the presentation.

NORTHWEST AMBULANCE SERVICE

lan Moses , Cheshire and Merseyside Area Director, Dave Kitchen,
Cheshire and Merseyside Head of Operations, Graham Pacey, Cheshire
and Merseyside South Sector Manager and Maud Larkin, Cheshire and
Merseyside Partnerships and Integration Manager attended the meeting
and delivered a presentation which provided an overview of the
performance of the North-West Ambulance Services NHS Trust to date in
2024.

The committee were provided with activity data for the whole of the
Cheshire and Merseyside area, alongside specific data for the South
Sector for which Cheshire East sits. Although there had been a decrease
in the number of calls received and incidents attended across the South
Sector, there were still some concerns over handover times at hospitals,
however Leighton Hospital was noted as one of the hospitals which had
significantly improved their processes for the admittance of patients.

NWAS had benefited from additional funding investment which had
resulted in an additional 850 ambulance hours per week now being
available.



32

Page 7

The committee discussed the work of Community First Responders (CFR)
and the important role they play in assisting NWAS within local
communities. It was noted that due to a change in NHS driving standards,
driving with blue light permissions had been removed from a number of
CFR’s.

It was noted that staff retention levels were good, and that due to the
various training options for becoming a Paramedics this was helping to
bring more people into roles within NWAS and the NHS.

The committee were informed that incidents of violence towards NWAS
staff was still a concern, and was one of the top 2 reasons for work related
injuries. The service now employed a specialist member of staff to train
NWAS workers on technics for disengagement and escape. In addition,
body worn cameras were issued to all frontline staff.

RESOLVED:

That the committee noted the content of the presentation.

WORK PROGRAMME

The committee considered the work programme.

RESOLVED:

The Scrutiny Committee scheduled for 13 March 2025 would be a
single item agenda focusing on Flood Risk Management

- That an item be added to the work programme in relation to
Housing Providers and the services they provide across Cheshire
East

- That an item be added to the work programme in relation to Suicide
Prevention and the support available

- That Chair of the Committee agree with Democratic Services the
appropriate timeframes for items to be presented.

The meeting commenced at 10.00 am and concluded at 1.35 pm

Councillor L Wardlaw (Chair)



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Cheshire East Scrutiny Committee

13th March 2025

Cheshire Fire & Rescue Service (CFRS) Community
Risk Management Plan 2024-28 Update Including
Response to Flood Related Incidents

GM Matt Barlow

Cheshire

Fire & Rescue Service




A dedicated External
Planning Manager

Proactive with forecasts
of extreme
weather/heavy rainfall

CFRS publish weather
warning/alerts on our
Social Media

Works closely with CRF
Partners

Cheshire Local
Resilience Forum Flood
Advisory Service
Teleconference

OFFICIAL

FRS response to widescale Flooding Events

Attend incidents based
on requests through Fire
Control

o

QD
Information is sharegR
internally to ensure g?l
H
staff are aware o



Previously reported to CE Scrutiny ._-‘f cE=
=\ JiF

Committee P
e
Review of specialist water
Safety/Rescue Provision
o All front line firefighters
issued with Wading suits e
circa 550 staff IExtreme westher events iked 0 cimete
change can pose & fisk i peopis and properties,
o Redeployment of Specialist e il e ur ot response
Water Rescue Teams S
o Relocation of Rescue Boats
influenced by Risk and CFRS Flood/Water
Response

w-,!l"!.,\,/ : _

E’;L\*‘a& "5*9«;;{ Review, Options &
-':Eiﬁ-f—"' ecommendations

3\\%’& a”\>£

//:a‘,lllﬁas\\ ebruary 2021

OFFICIAL '\ cLEUE T AT



CFRS CRMP
2024-2028

Summary of
Proposals

L
N

OFFICIAL

2T obed



Community Risk Management Plan

* Required under Fire and Rescue National Framework

 |dentify and address key fire and rescue risks

* Cheshire’s corporate plan and key objectives: 2 Community Risk
. — anagement Plan
* More Prevention _ " 2024-2028
* More Protection _ ot o consutaton
« Better Response s r ¢
* People
* Finances

MORE PREVENTION ‘
MORE PROTECTION
BETTER RESPONSE

OFFICIAL



Project progress

Project 1: change the way we measure response times.

Project 2: convert four on-call fire engines to full-time crewing during weekdays.

Project 3: convert Knutsford's fire engine from on-call to day crewing.

Project 4: reorganise daytime fire cover in Warrington.

Project 5: strengthen the on-call system.

OFFICIAL

T abed



Impact of response projects

Before

OFFICIAL

After

GT abed



A E23 Wilmslow
E24 Knutsford A

E20 Bollington

E19 Macclesfield

Tx\ A\E17 Holmes Chapel
“Adlewith
»—J‘vf .
N~ A E18 Congleto

E16 Sandbach

E14 Alsager

E15 Crewe

A

E12 Nantwich

E13 Audlem

Cheshire

Business Intelligence Team © Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 1000240064

OFFICIAL

-
o)
Q
o)
H
o

Station Crewing Type

@ Wholetime

¢ Nucleus

M Day Crewed

AOn Call



Multiagency Response to
Widescale Flooding Events




Please feel free to ask questions.

OFFICIAL

8T abed



Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2024/25 and 2025/26

Report
Reference

Scrutiny
Committee

Title

Purpose of Report

Lead Officer

Consultation

Equality
Impact
Assessment

Corporate Plan
Priority

Part of
Budget and
Policy
Framework

Exempt
Item

SC/08/24-25

13/03/25

Flood Risk
Management

To receive an update
on flood risk
management from
partner agencies
(LLFA, Fire Authority,
UU and the
Environment
Agency).

Davies, Paul

No

No

Open; Green;
Fair

No

No

SC/04/24-25

TBC

Review of Prevent
and Channel
Guidance

To receive an update
on the
implementation of the
national Prevent and
Channel Guidance

Broomhall, Jill

No

No

Open; Fair

No

No

SC/10/24-25

TBC

Primary Care /
Community
Services

To receive an update
on the Primary Care
Estates Programme
from East Cheshire
NHS Trust and
potential changes to
community services
across the borough

Wilkinson,
Mark

No

No

Open; Green;
Fair

No

No

SC/14/24-25

TBC

Right Care, Right
Person

Following its
implementation,
review a year on, the
impact it has had on
residents and policing
across the Cheshire
East area.

Broomhall, Jill

N/A

TBC

Open

No

No

SC/15/24-25

TBC

Early Release from
Prison

To enable the
committee to
understand the
impact on the
Probation Service
following the early
release of two
cohorts of Prisoners,
and also the support
being provided by
Housing Partners and

Broomhall, Jill

N/A

TBC

Open

No

No

OFFICIAL

6T abed

9 wa)| epuaby



Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2024/25 and 2025/26

their commitment to
residents in
conjunction with Anti
Social Behaviour.

SC/16/24-25 | TBC Cheshire & Following the setting | Wilkinson, N/A TBC Open; Fair No No
Merseyside Health of a number of Mark
Partnership objectives, how is the

partnership meeting
the 2 objectives of
‘improving population
health and health
care’, and ‘tackling
health

inequalities’, —have
they been achieved,
and what is being
done to achieve

0z abed

them?
SC/17/24-25 | TBC Domestic Abuse The committee to Broomhall, Jill | N/A TBC Open No No
Related Deaths and | scrutinise why it can
Inquests at take a significant
Coroners Courts amount of time for an
inquest to be
undertaken.
SC/19/24-25 | TBC Suicide Prevention To scrutinise the Kilminster, N/A TBC Open No Yes
external support Guy
available.

Future meeting dates (confirmed at Council)
26 June 2025

4 September 2025

11 December 2025

12 March 2026

25 June 2026

3 September 2026

Following the approval of calendar of meetings at Council on 26 February 2025, the Chair will meet with Officers to agree dates for items to
be presented to the committee.

OFFICIAL



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	Minutes

	5 Update on Flood Risk Management
	6 Work Programme

